ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 6, 2001
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Joe Hayes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 186
"An Act relating to a nmunicipal enhanced 911 surcharge on
wi rel ess tel ephones.”

- MOVED CSHB 186(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 175

"An Act meking an appropriation to the Alaska Industrial
Devel opnment and Export Authority for power projects; and
providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED CSHB 175(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 58
"An Act relating to the calculation and paynent of unenpl oynent
conpensati on benefits; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 58(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 152
"An Act relating to brewpub |icenses.™

- MOVED CSHB 152(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2001



BILL: HB 186
SHORT TITLE: 911 SURCHARGE ON W RELESS TELEPHONES
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) MEYER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/15/01 0609 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/15/01 0609 (H CRA, L&C

03/ 22/ 01 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 22/ 01 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 22/ 01 (H M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 22/ 01 0684 (H CRA RPT 4DP

03/ 22/ 01 0684 (H DP: SCALZI, MJRKOWSKI ,
KERTTULA, MEYER

03/ 22/ 01 0684 (H FN1: ZERQ H. CRA)

04/ 02/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 02/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 06/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 175

SHORT TI TLE: APPROP: POVWER PRQIECTS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) LANCASTER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
03/12/01 0543 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
03/12/01 0543 (H L&C, FIN
03/ 30/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 30/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 06/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 58

SHORT TI TLE: UNEMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/16/01 0089 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H) FN 1: ZERQ(LWF)

01/ 16/ 01 0089 (H FN 2: (ADM VARI QUS DEPTS)

01/16/01 0089 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

02/ 28/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 28/ 01 (H Bill Postponed To 3/9/01

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 6, 2001



03/ 09/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 09/ 01 (H) Heard & Hel d
03/ 09/ 01 (H) M NUTE( L&C)
03/ 23/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 23/ 01 (H) Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 06/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 152
SHORT TI TLE: BREWPUB LI CENSES
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) HALCRO

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 28/ 01 0461 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 28/ 01 0461 (H L&C

04/ 02/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

04/ 02/ 01 (H Bill Postponed To 4/6/01

04/ 06/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DANI EL  YOUMANS

AT&T Wrel ess Services, Inc.

617 East| ake Avenue East

Seattl e, Washington 98109

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 186, Version J.

STEVE O CONNOR

231 Sout h Binkley Street

Sol dot na, Al aska 99669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 186, Version J.

RAY M LLER

Fai r banks Pol i ce Depart nent

656 Seventh Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 186.

" SCOOTER' VELCH, Chi ef

Fai r banks Pol i ce Depart nment

656 Seventh Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99701

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 186.

GLEN MARUNDE
P. O Box 192

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2001



Tok, Al aska 99780
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 175.

KEN GATES

Cordova El ectric Conpany

P. 0. Box 20

Cordova, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the CS for HB 175.

JOE HI CKS

(No address provi ded)

Chi st ochi na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 175.

SUSAN HECKS, Mayor

City of Seldovia

Drawer B

Sel dovi a, Al aska 99663

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 175.

ERI C YOULD

Al aska Rural Electric Cooperative Association
703 Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 175.

REPRESENTATI VE KEN LANCASTER

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 421

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 175.

AMY ERI CKSON, Staff

to Representative Lisa Mirkowski

Al aska State Legislature

Capitol Building, Room 418

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced the changes in HB 58, Version C,
on behal f of the sponsor.

REBECCA NANCE GAMEZ, Deputy Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnent

P. O Box 21149

Juneau, Al aska 99802-1149

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent for
HB 58.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2001



KEVI N HAND, St af f

to Representative Andrew Hal cro

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 414

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 152 on behal f of the sponsor.

LI NDA THOVAS, Chief Operations Oficer

Al aska Brew ng Conpany

5429 Shaune Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 152 on behalf of Marcy and
Jeff Larson.

SEAN BECK, President

Specialty I nports

(No addresses provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 152.

GLENN BRADY, President

Silver @ulch Brew ng Conpany

P. O. Box 82125

Fai r banks, Al aska 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 152, Version
J.

KAREN BERCGER, Owner

Honer Brew ng Conpany

(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 152, Version
J.

LASSE HOLMES
P. O Box 214
Homer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 152.

LARRY HACKENM LLER, Owner

Cl ub Manchu

518 Farners Loop

Fai r banks, Al aska 99712

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 152.

S.J. KLINE, President
Borealis Brewery Conpany
349 East Ship Creek Avenue
Anchor age, Al aska 99501

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2001



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 152.

MATT JONES, Co- Oaner

Moose' s Toot h

1513 Ki nni ki nni ck Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Brewers CGuild of
Al aska in support of HB 152, Version J.

CHRI S ANDERSON

737 West 5th Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 152.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-49, SIDE A

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Commerce
Standing Committee neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Those present
at the call to order included Representatives Mirkowski, Halcro,
Meyer, Kott, and Crawford. Represent ati ves Rokeberg and Hayes
joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 186-911 SURCHARGE ON W RELESS TELEPHONES

Number 0097

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 186, "An Act relating to a nmnunicipal enhanced 911
surcharge on wreless tel ephones.™

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nmde a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS), version 22-LS0381\J, Cook, 4/5/01, as
t he working docunent. There being no objection, Version J was
before the committee.

Nunmber 0216

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, speaking as the sponsor of HB 186, told
menbers that a |lot of concerns expressed during the previous
hearing had to do with the Federal Conmunications Conmm ssion
(FCC) docket. The ruling is contained in the handout from
Bel | South, found on the Internet; he said AT&T agrees that it
explains the ruling fairly well.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER pointed out that the ruling says carriers
are entitled to recover costs of providing 911 service. The
change in [Version J] is that the legislative findings are put
in Section 4, page 3, of the bill. The FCC ruling nmakes it
clear that a cost recovery needs to be in place before a carrier
is obligated to provide 911 services. Both Anchorage and
Fai r banks have expressed a desire to begin this service as early
as this fall, which is why he would like the bill to pass this
session, if possible.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ai ned that carriers will recovery a 50-
or 75-cent surcharge. In the Lower 48 sone carriers have not
been passing on cost recovery, and AT&T anticipates the cost to
be around 10 cents. The rest [of the surcharge] would go to the
municipalities to provide revenue to pay for equipnent and staff
for the service. He noted that M. Rogers, during the previous
hearing on the bill, said the current surcharge for |and phones
covers about 40 percent of the total cost of the 911 service for
the Municipality of Anchorage (MA).

Nunber 0434

REPRESENTATIVE MEYER said it is going to be wup to the
municipalities and the carriers to work out who gets what of
that 50-cent surcharge, and [the committee] may hear from AT&T
that it has an agreenent with the nmunicipality to split the
sur char ge.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI referred to Section 4 of the bill. She
indicated that unlike current statute, [the ruling] spells out
an entitlenent to recover the cost of operation for phase 1.
She asked for verification that [Version J] is not making a
di stinction between cost recovery for the different phases.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER affirned that. He said he has spoken with
AT&T, the MOA, and indirectly with ACS, and the intent is not to

visit this again. Unfortunately, the cost for phase 2 is not
known yet, but the belief is that as [Al aska] gets closer to
phase 2, the technology costs wll dimnish and the current

surcharge woul d be adequate to cover both phases.

Number 0593

DANI EL YOUVANS, AT&T Wreless Services, Inc., cane forth and
said AT&T supports the proposed CS [Version J] and finds the

cost-recovery |anguage an inprovenent over the previous bill.
When asked for wverification that this is specified as cost

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2001



recovery for phase 1, he replied affirmatively. It is too early
to address the issue of phase 2 until both the 911 operators and
the carriers have a better idea of what those costs will be, he
added. The legislation should just address phase 1, since there
are solid nunbers on those costs.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER nentioned that he and M. Youmans had
spoken, and he asked for clarification that AT&T works out
agreenents with the municipalities.

MVR. YOUVANS replied affirmatively. This process is a
partnership between the wireless carriers and the 911 operators,
he said; essentially, the networks have to interconnect to

provide this service. Typically, a service agreenment wll be
signed with the nmunicipalities that |ays out every thing [AT&T]
wil | provide and what cost recovery wll be request ed.

Nat i onwi de, AT&T's cost-recovery anount with the municipalities
is about 11.8 cents per custoner a nonth, he said.

Nunber 0705

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to the first bill hearing, in
which a letter was submtted by M. Younmans expressing concern
that sonething should be nore unified. He asked M. Youmans

whet her Anchorage and Fairbanks are objecting to changing this
from 75 to 50 cents, or whether they want to nmaintain the 75
cents. He also asked whether there has been discussion about
| eveling that out and naking it an across-the-board 50 cents.

MR. YOUVANS replied that initially he got the feeling that the
municipalities wanted to nake the surcharge at parity with wire
| ine [phones], which is why they chose the 50- and 75-cent
| evel s. [ AT&T] had expressed that wreless [phones] are
different from wre-line phones because of the ability to use
911 anywhere in the state; therefore, there should be an
equi tabl e surcharge. He said [AT&T] understands the other side
of the argument, but continues to hold that it should be
equi t abl e.

Nunmber 0800

STEVE O CONNCR testified via teleconference and encouraged the
commttee to keep the fee set at 50 cents and 75 cents, because
the local governnent needs to have a say. He said [l ocal
governnents] know best what the costs are to operate their
enhanced 911 systens, which may vary from [place to place].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2001



Kenai Peni nsul a Borough supports keeping [the surcharge] at 50
and 75 cents, he added.

MR. O CONNOR said he thought [M. Youmans] was probably correct
when he said [AT&T] sits down wth the nunicipalities and
boroughs and negotiates a cost-recovery [anpbunt] for the phase 1
costs. He asked whether the bill would be revisited if the
phase 2 costs are nore than expected, because he thought he'd
heard earlier that there was no intent to revisit this bill

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER surm sed that if phase 2 costs are a |ot
nore than anticipated, legislators could revisit it; however, he
[ personally] didn't intend to do so. He expressed hope that the
phase 2 |[costs] would be less than anticipated because as
t echnol ogy progresses, it becones | ess expensive.

MR. O CONNOR said he would support the proposed CS [Version J],
| eave the wre-line fees based on population, and let the
muni ci pal governnment set the surcharges.

Nunmber 0949

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. O Connor for the rationale
behind the cost differential between the 50 cents and the 75
cents. For exanple, why would Anchorage be limted to
[charging] 50 cents, when a smaller comunity such as Kenai or
Fai rbanks can charge up to 75 cents? He asked whether there
woul d be | ess demand on systens in smaller comunities.

MR. O CONNOR replied that the demand nmay be |ess; however, the
per-capita cost to smaller communities to install enhanced 911
systens is greater when conpared to the larger nunicipalities,
which may be the reason [for the l|anguage in the] original
| egi sl ati on.

RAY M LLER Fai r banks Police Departnent, testified via
tel econference that he would support nunicipalities' having
split rates; a lot of the smaller nmunicipalities have a higher
anount than the |ocal governnents and can adjust that for their
communi ties. He expressed concern about allowing the wreless
t el ephone conpany to use that nobney to recover costs, however,
because over time the 75 cents a nonth is going to be eroded by
t he tel ephone conpanies' cost, and it won't be available on the
other end of the 911 systemto operate and pay for the equi pnent
and staff for which it was originally set up.

Number 1107

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 6, 2001



"SCOOTER'" WELCH, Chief, Fairbanks Police Departnent testified
via teleconference in favor of the legislation and the
nodi fication, saying he continues to support the difference in
the fee structure allowing nunicipalities to collect 50 or 75
cents, depending on size. He, too, is concerned that if phone
conpanies are set up to recover costs, those dollars my be
eroded in future vyears as business costs increase. He
recogni zed that [phone conpanies] need to be able to recover
sone costs for operations also.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO commented that he supports the bill, but
has reservations about the 25-cent price differential. Smal | er
comunities nmean snaller systens, fewer cell-phone users, and a
di m ni shed inpact on the system He said he isn't sure why
smal l er conmunities are able to charge a higher rate.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER explained that this canme up as a proposed
anmendnent, which failed unaninously, in the House Community and
Regi onal Affairs Standing Commttee. He surmsed that it failed
because the rural areas don't have as many people paying into
the system although the system costs are the sane. It is a
matter of economes of scale, he said, and it also nakes it
easier to understand because it is being kept the same as the
[ surcharge for the] |andline [phones].

Number 1280

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nmade a motion to nove the CS for HB 186,
ver si on 22-1.S0381\ J, Cook, 4/ 5/ 01, from conmmttee W th
i ndi vi dual recommendations and the attached fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, CSHB 186(L&C) noved from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee.

HB 175- APPROP: PONER PRQJECTS

Nunber 1401

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the conmttee would take up HOUSE
BILL NO 175, "An Act nmaking an appropriation to the Al aska
I ndustrial Devel opment and Export Authority for power projects;
and providing for an effective date." [In packets was a new
proposed conmttee substitute (CS), version 22-LS075\P, Craner,
4/ 5/ 01.]

GLEN MARUNDE testified via tel econference. A 40-year resident
from the Tok area, he said there is a strong possibility that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2001



the natural gas pipeline will cone through Tok; the fuel may be
advant ageous to "feed" the Tok-to-Chistochina tie-in |line, which
woul d be i deal

KEN GATES, Cor dova El ectric Conpany, testified Vi a
t el econference, encouraging comrittee to endorse the proposed CS
[Version P]. He thanked the comittee, and thanked

Representatives Lancaster [sponsor] and Harris [cosponsor] for
sponsoring the bill

Number 1484

JOE HICKS testified via teleconference and expressed that
Chistochina is in full support of the transm ssion line, which
is needed for energency purposes and which wll help the
comunity a |ot. The community is growing quickly, and the
village is in the process of relocation. Safety issues need to
be addressed. The present systemis not adequate, and there are

[ power] surges. He said 80 percent of the community has
electricity, and there is concern for the cost of [doing the
rest]. If the transmssion line goes through, it would neet al

the comunity's needs. He noted that an airfield and fire

station [are being built]; seven road projects [are planned] in
the near future; and there are tourism and National Park Service
projects com ng up. He pointed out that the transmission |ine
al so woul d assist the comunities of Slana and Mentasta Lake.

Number 1600

SUSAN  HECKS, Mayor , Cty of Sel dovi a, testified Vi a
tel econference that the City of Seldovia urges the commttee to
support HB 175, in particular, the portion for the Honer
El ectric Association regarding the Seldovia-Port G ahanf Nanwal ek

power project. The project is vital to the public safety and
economc viability of the 900 residents and the 25,000-plus
visitors to the south side of Kachenmak Bay. The current

underwater cable is past its designed life, she enphasized, and
could fail at any tine.

M5. HECKS asked nenbers to consider that if this noney is not a
grant and has to be repaid, it will be passed on to residents,
which would be difficult for the consumers, [in light] of the
econom c status on that side of the bay. She nentioned that
Wi th the spruce-bark-beetle infestation, power outages will only
I ncrease.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2001



M5. HECKS noted that the portion of the Ilegislation that
addresses the generation plant is another vital aspect for [the
community]; «currently, the generation plant in Seldovia has

agi ng generators. She said the plant is capable of sending
power all the way back to Honer Spit as well as tying to
Nanwal ek and Port G aham when power outages occur. She urged

the commttee's support.
Number 1706

ERIC YOULD, Alaska Rural Electric Cooperative Association
(ARECA), testified via teleconference. He informed nenbers that
he had spoken wth Jean Bjornstaff (ph), General Manager,
Chugi ak Electric Association, who wanted to convey strong
support for at |east the Anchorage-Fairbanks upgrade. He al so
had spoke with Mke Scott, General Manager, Anchorage Mini cipa
Li ght and Power, who conveyed his support for the project.

Nunber 1772
CHAI R MURKOWEKI cl osed public testinmony on HB 175.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT nmade a notion to adopt the proposed CS,
Version P [22-LS0705\P, Cramer, 4/5/01], as the work draft.

Nunber 1786
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT expl ained that "we" nmet with the sponsor and
came up with this particular formto fund these projects; it is
a nore viable approach, based on sone of the coments that he
has heard. Representative Kott urged nenbers to support it and
nove the bill onward, and suggested that projects could be
"stripped out" and included in a capital budget. He pointed out
that for the person in Honmer or Seldovia, it is inportant to at
| east [ dr aw] attention; wi thout this legislation, [those
comunities] won't have that opportunity.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO commented that if [Version P] is adopted,

the bill packet might as well be used as a doorstop, because the
bill wouldn't go anywhere and the projects wouldn't be discussed
once [the bill leaves] this commttee.

Nunmber 1934

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD concurred with Representative Halcro,
explaining that he has a problem with the funding source. He
supports the original bill, and believes the suggestion that
maybe the Rail belt Energy Fund could be used to do zero-percent
or lowinterest loans is a good one. He remarked that if the
constitutional budget reserve (CBR) is used, this won't pass.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked the sponsor to comment, since he sits
on the House Finance Conmttee.

Number 1912

REPRESENTATI VE KEN LANCASTER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 175, stated that he isn't "enanored" wth the funding
source, but if the consensus were to nove these projects
forward, he would be anenable. The one change he'd heard over
the past couple of days, he noted, would be to change the
repaynment period to 25 versus 15 [years]; it would soften the
rate charges for the people in Seldovia if they go up. He
expressed willingness to try to nake this work any way possi bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked why the noney taken out of the CBR
woul d be repaid to the Rail belt Energy Fund.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER offered that this helps build the fund
for other things such as a gas line or other energy projects
down the road. This could be a source of funding to enlarge the
Rai | belt Energy Fund for future projects.

Number 1973

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why there is discussion about
changi ng the fundi ng source.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER nentioned nine years of history wth
the Railbelt energy funds and where the funds were envisioned to
go, adding that he may be attenpting to spread them outside of
the Rail belt.

A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives Meyer, Kott,
Rokeberg, and Murkowski voted in favor of adopting Version P as
the work draft. Representatives Halcro, Crawford, and Hayes
voted against it. Therefore, Version P was adopted as the work
draft by a vote of 4-3.

Nunber 2031

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE KOTT made a notion to adopt conceptual Anendnent
1, changing page 2, line 21, from15 to 25 years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed. He asked whether interest
woul d be applied or if it would be a straight repaynent.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT replied that it would just be a straight
repaynent.

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER conmented that $25 million goes to the
Al aska Industrial Developnent and Export Authority (Al DEA)
through the Al aska Energy Authority (AEA) to build their own
project. Only a small portion would be of concern for repaynent
anyway, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said when the d ennall en-Susitna project was
[built] it was a 35-year, no-interest loan; this conports nore
closely with procedures in the past.

Nunber 2111
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI  announced that wth no further objection,
conceptual Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATIVE HALCRO nmade a notion to adopt conceptual
Amendnment 2, on page 2, line 23, to replace "Railbelt Energy
Fund" with "constitutional budget reserve fund."

CHAI R MURKOWABKI obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO expressed that if [the legislature] is
going to take noney out of the CBR, [the npbney] ought to go back
into the CBR It is clear that the Railbelt Energy Fund has
beconme political, he enphasized; the original intent was to take
noney from the Railbelt Energy Fund to do -energy-related
prograns. He doesn't believe [the |egislature] should "rob" the
CBR to increase the Railbelt Energy Fund, he added, especially
with the "precious" dollars that remain in there.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said if the commttee adopts conceptual
Amendnent 2, none of the language on lines 22 to 24 would be
necessary, because every tinme noney is withdrawn from the CBR,
the legislature is obligated to repay it. However, there are
Some provisions. All of this nmoney wll go into the general
fund first, and then will be put in the CBR if that is how [the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 6, 2001



| egi sl ature] approaches it. Based on previous wthdrawals,
Representative Kott said, he didn't think [the |egislature] ever
put anything back in the CBR It goes into the general fund and
will probably stay there, rather than into the CBR unless [the
| egislature] indicates it is to go into another fund already
created within the general fund, which would be the REF
(Rai |l belt Energy Fund).

Nunber 2216

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER remarked that initially there was sone talk
about keeping the noney in the Railbelt Energy Fund in case [the
| egi slature] wanted to have part ownership of the pipeline, to
expedite the process. The noney that is paid back goes into the
Rai | belt Energy Fund to build it up. He asked for clarification
that repaying the CBR woul d not even be possible.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT commented that that is his understanding.
It goes into the general fund and would have to be appropriated
out fromthere.

Nunber 2264

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said [the state] has $71 mllion in the
Rai | belt Energy Fund for energy-related projects. So what is
being said is:

No, no, no, we're not going to use "that" nopney

because sone people don't like it, so ... we're going
to ... take noney from the constitutional budget
reserve, $62 mllion, and ... spend that on energy-
proj ects. ... Then when it's repaid, or, in the case

that sone of these projects aren't conpleted and the
noney | apses, we're going to stick that back into the
Rai | belt Energy Fund. So, [it's] conpletely possible
that at sone point in tine, we could have over $100
mllion in the Railbelt Energy Fund, and still not be
able to access ... [it] for viable, needed energy
projects, because of the political history and the
opposi tion.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO enphasi zed that this makes absolutely no
sense to him taking from one pot of noney and giving it to

anot her. He asked: Wiy not just do a $62 nillion straight
appropriation into the Railbelt Energy Fund if that IS
[ desired] ? This is purely based on politics, he added, not

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 6, 2001



sound reasoning, and is certainly not to the benefit of the
people in these areas that need these projects.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES sought verification that when [the bill]
gets to the House floor it needs a three-quarters' vote to tap
into the CBR

[ There was an indication of affirmation.]
REPRESENTATI VE KOIT commented that there are projects on this

list that everybody can support, and he thought the three-
quarters' vote could be obtained unless sone people just don't

want to increase general fund spending. It is an increase of
$60 million from "our" bottom line. There is a taskforce that
will be looking at energy needs around the state, he pointed

out, which would be back to report that there are opportunities
to spend noney from the Railbelt Energy Fund on Railbelt energy
proj ects. Representative Kott also nentioned that the Denali
Commi ssion is looking into this, and said there is no shortage
of projects to fund there.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI said if [the legislature] has the CBR draw to
fund these [projects] and the repaynents go into the Railbelt
Energy Fund, an overall savings account has been taken from
which would be available for spending anywhere in the state.
[ Those nonies are being] funneled into a fund that is now
dedicated for only Railbelt energy projects; however, there
hasn't been consistency ensuring that [the funds] go to Rail belt
energy projects [only].

Nunber 2408

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked: |If the noney is being paid back and
goes into the general fund, and then an appropriation [is
required] to get it back into the CBR - which doesn't sound as
t hough it happens - what good does it do to nmake this anmendnment >

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked Representative Rokeberg whether he
recalls [that the l|egislature] has appropriated noney back into
t he CBR

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that [the legislature] tries
every year, but the "front part of the budget causes the sweep

to go away." There is a "sweep" provision in the CBR that
requires all noney expended to be paid back that is part of the
CBR. He supports the anmendnent, he added, because if [the

noney] is taken out, it needs to be put back. He expressed his

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 6, 2001



understanding that the anmendnent before the commttee is to
revert to the CBR, rather than to the Railbelt Energy Fund.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said he understood it was going to have to
go to the general fund first. He added, "You ve either got

the amount ... left in the general fund or in the Railbelt
Energy Fund."

TAPE 01-49, SIDE B
Nunber 2465

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked: Since it is going to go back into
the general fund and be "swept” into the Railbelt Energy Fund,
why isn't the $62 nmllion put into the Railbelt Energy Fund,
thus elimnating the need for a three-quarters' vote?

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Hayes, Halcro,
Meyer, Rokeberg, Crawford, and Miurkowski voted in favor of
conceptual Amendnent 2. Representative Kott voted against it.

Therefore, conceptual Anendnent 2 was adopted by a vote of 6-1.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO directed attention to page 2, Section 4,
lines 27 to 28. He said it brings up the possibility of
conceptual Anmendnment 3, because it talks about funds that have
| apsed back into the Railbelt Energy Fund. He said he wasn't
sure if there needs to be a corresponding anmendnent to ensure
that the noney doesn't go back into the Railbelt Energy Fund, or
whet her the section can be elim nated.

CHAI R MJRKOWBKI suggested that the drafters could nmake the
conform ng anmendnents.

Nunber 2384

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said the bill wll pass out of this
commttee, wll go to the House Finance Conmittee, then to the
floor, and will becone a "Christmas present.” He asked what
will stop every needed project frombeing added to [this bill].

REPRESENTATI VE LANCASTER replied that Representative Hayes is
probably right, but hopefully there wll be consensus noving
forward. He deferred to Representative Kott.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT replied that he would control his "side of

the aisle” from "hanging" anything on the bill if Representative
Hayes woul d do the sane.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO comented that with $2.5 billion in the
CBR, there is no ceiling; this is in contrast to taking the
noney directly from the Railbelt Energy Fund, where there is a
finite $71 ml1ion.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT pointed out that there is $2.4 billion in
the CBR, if it were all used up this year, the fiscal policy
taskforce woul d be nmuch happier and [the |egislature] would have
to inplenent a revenue-spending plan much earlier than nost
woul d |1 ke.

Nunber 2257

CHAI R MURKOWBKI commented that the answer is really very sinple:
Take it fromthe Railbelt Energy Fund and use it for the purpose
for which it was designed. It is a concern, she enphasized

that the energy fund has been just sitting there, and hasn't
been used for its intended purpose.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD indicated his belief that the sponsor
had a good bill, but it would "die" if the proposed CS was noved
fromcomittee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he is not going to support
the bill, because it is not a fair and judicious use of the
fund. This state has a significant need for better production
and distribution of energy, he exclained, and [the |egislature]
needs to look at the noney that is left to see how it can be
| everaged for all areas of the state, and to look primarily at
the requirement of the Railbelt area. He said he wouldn't
object to a bill that takes that noney and |everages it for a
better and nore efficient use of energy.

Nunber 2144
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the restructuring commttee that

existed in the 21st |egislature had substantial hearings on
different alternative energy forns and what could be done around

the state. This bill takes that last bit of "seed noney" and
gives it to a few small projects that just happen to get to the
"Christmas tree" first. There are other projects that need to
be considered as well, in a broader picture.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wouldn't support this bil

because it is not properly crafted to help [Al aska' s] energy
needs. He clarified that there isn't one project in [the bill]
that he wouldn't support on its own nerits, and he believes [the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 6, 2001



projects] need the noney. However, this isn't the tine or place
to do that, and [the |egislature] needs to help these areas find
noni es t hrough ot her fundi ng sources.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said he doesn't believe this bill is "dead,"
and doesn't believe that it can be determ ned how anot her nmenber
will vote once it reaches the full House.

Nunber 2076

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT made a notion to nmove the CS for HB 175
version 22-LS0705/P, Cramer, 4/5/01, as anended, out  of
commttee wth individual recomendations. [It was later
determ ned that there were no fiscal notes.]

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Crawford, Hayes
Hal cro, Meyer, Kott, and Mirkowski voted in favor of noving the
bill. Representative Rokeberg voted against it. Ther ef or e,

CSHB 175(L&C) noved from the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee by a vote of 6-1.

HB 58- UNEVMPLOYMENT COVPENSATI ON BENEFI TS

Nunber 1977

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI announced that the conmttee would take up HOUSE
BILL NO 58, "An Act relating to the calculation and paynent of
unenpl oynent  conpensation benefits; and providing for an
effective date."

AMY ERICKSON, Staff to Representative Lisa Mirkowski, Al aska
State Legislature, speaking as the commttee aide for the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee, cane forward to explain
the proposed committee substitute (CS), Version C [22-GH1016\C,
Cramer, 4/5/01]. She reported Version C it deletes the indexing

previ ously i ncl uded, and i npl enent s t he i ncreases to
unenpl oynment insurance (U) in three phases. In 2002, it wll
go from $250 to $272 [a week]; in 2003, from $272 to $292; and
in 2004, from $292 to $320. The Departnent of Labor and

Wor kf orce Devel opnment (DLWD) has seen [Version C], she said, and
hasn't had a problemwth it this far.

Nunber 1918

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked whether this would take out the index
and the indicator, and add a three-year [phase-in schene].

M5. ERI CKSON answered in the affirmti ve.

CHAI R MURKOWSBKI explained that there were concerns that making
the junps in [two years] would be a "hit" to the enployer, so it
was softened with a [three-year phase-in]. She nentioned that
commttee nenbers should have received an explanation of the
del ayed inpact of the benefit increases on tax rates; it is not
an easily understood process.

Number 1845

REBECCA NANCE GAMEZ, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Labor
and Wor kforce Devel opnment (DLWD), cane forward and said a three-
year phase-in is great, although the DLWD would have preferred
two [years]. However, she thought there were sone good
conpr om ses.

M5. GAMEZ explained that every year a calculation is done in Ul
when a benefit changes; this happens over a sliding three-year
w ndow, because it noderates the economc inpact on the
t axpayi ng enpl oyer. Thus an increase doesn't happen right away,

but phases in when it gets to certain trust fund |evels. The
three-year period is used to calculate the new tax rate. I n
this case, it will be effective January 1, and the period ending

the previous June 30 nekes basically zero inmpact on the first
year for enployers. The follow ng year, there are six nonths of
i ncreased benefit costs resulting from the increased weekly
benefit anount. In the third year, the increased costs for the
first year and for half of the second year are included in that
aver age.

M5. GAMEZ, in response to a question about renoval of the
i ndexing, said the departnent would rather have [kept] the
i ndexing to the annual weekly wage, but is flexible.

Nunmber 1706

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed his belief that it is best to
have a periodic review of these rates. He doesn't think a |ot
of Al askans object to having a reasonable rate, he said, but
there are sone sound objections to the qualifications of
benefits in Al askan prograns. [ The legislature] mght want to
| ook at it, because enployees pay such a small anmount of their
income into the tax pool and enployers pay the vast majority of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 6, 2001



it. Too often, he renmarked, people look at this benefit as a
right, not as an insurance benefit to tie them over until the
next job. There is an abuse in this program he exclained, and
it deserves sone review, he added that [the state] is now
rai sing taxes on businesses and passing it on to people who nay
be abusing the program

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO comented that [the legislature] is

anticipating another Senate bill diverting some noney from the
U trust fund to the university for prograns. Once that noney
is taken out, it needs to be replaced. It is not a very clean

way to fund the university, he expressed, and it could be called
a tax on business to support the university, which is nothing
nore than a hidden tax.

Number 1557

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remarked that the State Training and
Enpl oyment Program (STEP) is becom ng nore suspect in the way it
is funded, in his opinion, and he doesn't think nost people in
the state know it is there. The use of sone of those funds is
troubl esone, he enphasized, and if there is going to be a second
dip into the fund for allegedly excess funds, then either [the
state] is collecting too nmuch noney or there is a |low |evel of

unenpl oynent in the state. He said it is a systemc problem
that he is concerned about, and he probably wouldn't be
supporting that bill for that very reason.

CHAI R MJRKOWSKI requested confirmation that the [U trust] fund
is solvent, and that even if [the l|legislature] were to "raid"
it, it wouldn't jeopardize that sol vency.

Number 1479

M5. GAMEZ clarified that there are no excesses in the U trust
fund. The diversions that go to the STEP program conme out of
t he wor ker contri bution; however, t hat "backdoor s" t he

enpl oyers, who have to nmake up those reserves in the trust fund.
The first STEP program is pretty pure, she said; she refrained
from commenting on the second one. She enphasized that there
are no excesses; federal law guides the trust fund reserve
rates; and once nmoney is in the trust fund, it can't be taken
out . She offered to | eave a one-page handout explaining this
with the comm ttee aide.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI commented that the sentinment she has heard is
that a reasonable [increase] is to be expected, and in | ooking

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 6, 2001



at statistics on Alaska, [the legislature] could probably go a
bit further. The concern she'd heard was of being tied to the
index, which is truly a policy consideration; it didn't seem
that people were prepared to go forward with that at this tine.

Nunber 1394

CHAIR MURKOWBKI said she is confortable with the end product,
and is willing to noving it to the next commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD expressed disappointnent that tying it
to the average weekly wage is now [off the table]. He woul d
have thought it better, for enployers and enployees alike, to
not have to go five years w thout adjustnents and then to have a

sudden bunp. Even if [the commttee] had taken [the maxinmum
weekly benefit amount] to $300 rather than $320, it would have
been 47 percent of the average weekly wage. [ The committee]

could have tied it to a 47 percent replacenent, which he said
woul d have been a good conprom se; however, he recognized that
sone adjustment is better than none. He added that [the
| egi slature and the departnment] will be back in a few years to
argue it out again.

Number 1243

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO made a notion to adopt the proposed CS,
version 22-GH1016\C, Craner, 4/5/01, as a work draft. There
bei ng no objection, Version C was before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said in |ooking at Sections 3 and 6, he
is contenplating a conceptual anendnent to renove Section 3. He
suggested that if it is appropriate to put Section 3 back in, in
[2004], it would be up to that legislature at that tine.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI responded that if Section 3 were renoved, the
weekly benefit amount could go no higher than $296. It would
put [Alaska] far below the $320 or 50 percent of the average
weekly wage, which is where that $320 nunber canme from
initially. [The state] would arrive at the $296 in 2003, but it
woul d then be capped.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it depends on what the average
weekly wage is three years from now.

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI noted that [the commttee] has taken out the
reference to a tie to the average weekly wage.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 6, 2001



M5. GAMEZ concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the nunbers are based on
t hat .

CHAI R MURKOWBKI said that is how the division cane up with $320.
Number 1048

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said if he could nove that anmendnent, it
would |eave the future legislature to reexam ne the issue and
either raise or lower [the anount]. It mght be found at that
time that [the anpbunt in] Section 3 is too |ow He suggested
that what [the commttee] is doing here is a de facto sunset in
a sense.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI clarified that [the commttee] is just adding to
the existing schedule, and there will be [three] increnental
bunps: one in 2002, up to $272; one in 2003, up to $296; and
one in 2004, up to $320. The schedule ends after that, as it
ends now at $248.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the question is whether the
departnment, organized |abor, and enployers would cone back to
the legislature and say it needs adjustnent. This gives a
qui cker reaction time; historically, the legislature has taken
this up every four to five years. He suggested that nuch of it
depends on the econony and [Al aska's] average weekly wage. | f
[ Alaska] has an energy bill and the gas pipeline, there will be
an acceleration of wages, and there would be a [disparity]
between sone enploynent classifications and the regular folks
who do nost of the work of the state. He asked if it wouldn't
be better to revisit it earlier.

CHAIR MJURKOABKI said that would be the hit to the enployer,
which the effort is to avoid.

Number 0912

M5. GAMEZ reported that Thom Wley, U Actuary, had talked with
the people at British Petroleum (BP); the enploynent |[BP]
expects from the gas pipeline and from opening the Al aska
National WIldlife Refuge (ANVR) [to drilling] would result in an
overal |l inpact on the average weekly wage of $5.00 or $6.00, so
it would go from $239.50 to about $246. 50.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d that is one person's opinion.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD recall ed that at the end of the pipeline
[construction] in 1978, it took 26 weeks to ripple through the
econony and was back down to a nuch |ower average weekly wage
shortly after the pipeline was conplete. That is when being
tied to the average wage would benefit enployers, he said,
because it mrrors the econony. Around the 1980s, things got
"slim for construction workers, and the average weekly wage
dr opped consi derably. He offered his opinion that had [ Al aska]
been tied to an average weekly wage, the benefits would have
gone down and the taxes on the enployers would have foll owed.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO commented that if the commttee renoved
Section 3 so there was not an increase on January 1, 2004, the
departnment would have to cone back to the |egislature sooner;
however, a forum would be provided for |legislators to say,
"Look, you were just back three years ago ... getting an
i ncrease. " He said the longer [the commttee] can stretch it
out, the nore evenly the increases will be for enployers and the
nore [the state] wll benefit. Then in 2005 or 2006 [the
| egi sl ature] can revisit it.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the nmajority of people
who are paid U benefits are not union nenbers or construction
workers; the bulk of the people in the state pay taxes when
wor ki ng, and the service industry is a bigger enployer in the

state. When there are economc cycles, he said, those wages
tend to go up, but usually they don't go down as fast. The
gross anount of taxation on business is still going to go up, he
excl ai ned.

Number 0698

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD remar ked t hat after [ pi peline
constructi on workers] nmade the average go way up, they also nade
the average go way down shortly [after construction was
conplete, in 1978], which is what he was speaking to.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the econony and the overall wages
and di sposabl e i ncone kept going up until 1986.

Nunmber 0652
REPRESENTATI VE HAYES nmde a notion to nove the CS for HB 58,

version 22-GH1016\C, Craner, 4/5/01, out of <commttee wth
i ndi vidual recommendati ons and the attached fiscal note. Ther e

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 6, 2001



bei ng no objection, CSHB 58(L&C) noved from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee.

HB 152- BREWPUB LI CENSES

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 153]
Nunber 0542

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 152, "An Act relating to brewpub |icenses."”

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO, speaking as the sponsor of HB 152, made a
notion to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute (CS), Version
J [22-LS0354\J, Ford, 4/6/01], as the work draft. There being
no objection, Version J was before the committee.

KEVIN HAND, Staff to Representative Andrew Hal cro, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained that this new, highly successful industry
in Alaska continues to have substantial growh, and is a new
source of enploynent and benefits to |ocal conmmunities around
the state; it provides diversification for the state's otherw se
nono- nodal econony around the state. Breweries and brewpubs are
provi ding positive econonm ¢ enhancenents in alnost every region
of Alaska, including many different conmunities from Sout heast
to the Interior. Positive effects include tax revenue for |oca

comunities, enploynent, and subsequent positive side effects
for such things as enpl oynment insurance.

Number 0320

MR. HAND remarked that current brewpub law - a portion of which
was supplied for the conmittee - caps the amount of beer a
brewpub is allowed to brew annually at 75,000 gallons. However,
busi nesses are inpeded by that |imtation. A few years ago when
this legislative body considered these |laws, he told nenbers, a
cap was arbitrarily put in place; according to conmmttee
testinmony, there was nothing substantive that Iled to the
creation of the cap at that |evel

MR HAND said there are conpanies which, after bunping up
against that cap, are faced with the decision of noving their
operations elsewhere - where they would be unlimted in the
anount of beer they could brew. It is nmuch cheaper to take al
of the aggregate products that are required to brew beer, bottle
them el sewhere, and ship them to Al aska as a finished product
than to do it here.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 6, 2001



MR HAND told the commttee [Al aska] has alcohol Ilaws that
oversee the industry for good reason. Regar dl ess of where one
stands on the issue of alcohol enforcenent, he suggested that
everyone would agree that the governnment should not stifle
private industries, especially [industries] that would help
di versify the Al askan econony.

MR. HAND, referring to Version J, explained that it is an
agreenent considered by many different interests in the alcoho
i ndustry, and incorporates provisions to ensure their interests
and financial obligations; nuch dialogue has taken place to
bring this proposed legislation to the table.

MR. HAND said [Version J] levels the playing field for al
breweries and brewpubs, allowing all participants to operate
under the sane basic structure and to have the sane
opportunities. It is the closest that this industry has cone to
equal access to the market. Any current brewery that wants to
utilize these statutes to convert to a brewpub would be doing
so under the sane |laws and conditions as any other conpetitors,
which is the basis for conpetition in the private sector

Nunmber 0086

MR. HAND expl ained Version J. Section 1 [paragraph (1)] renpbves
the production cap of 75,000 gallons annually and authorizes
anyone with a brewpub license to manufacture beer in the state.
Paragraph (2) renoves the <collocation clause regarding the
| ocation of manufacturing facility versus a retail location; it
allows a brewpub to have its brewing facility in a separate
| ocation fromits retail outlet. It also provides that brewubs
may not hold nore than two beverage dispensary |icenses, neaning
they can only have a maxinmum of two retail |ocations from which
to supply thenselves with their product. A brewpub can conti nue
to open nore locations wutilizing a regular restaurant-eating
pl ace license, but would have to buy its own product via the
normal distribution channels and at whol esal e.

MR. HAND noted that paragraph (3) authorizes the sale of up to
five gallons a day to [an individual who is present on the
| i censed prem ses].
TAPE 01-50, SIDE A

MR. HAND, referring to paragraph (4), said free sanples could be
provided on the manufacturing premses during a brewery tour.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 6, 2001



He concluded wth Section 1, noting that paragraph (5)
aut horizes brewpubs to sell beer to a whol esaler. Section 2
repeal s subsection (d) of the statute, which is the portion
witten a few years ago when the legislature went over this
i ssue. In an effort to level the playing field, it repeals the
section that was currently enployed regarding a specific
oper ati on.

MR. HAND renarked that the Brewers Guild of Alaska (BGA), which
includes [representation] from nost of the breweries and
brewpubs in the state, recently passed a resolution in support
of HB 152, Version J. A great deal of public testinony has been
received by Representative Halcro's office in just a few short
weeks, from all portions of the state, and from every district
in Anchorage. He enphasized that 99.9 percent of [the input] is
greatly in support of revisiting the brewpub limts.

Nunber 0192

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO remarked that all of the green card
[questionnaires piled on the table] were supportive. Al t hough
three cards were received in opposition, one was from a
gentl eman who will be testifying before the commttee today, and
who is [now] in support of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Hand why he'd said the vol une
cap [set by the legislature] wasn't based on anything
subst anti ve.

Number 0299

MR. HAND replied that he had derived that from the testinony he
got fromthe Bill Action and Status Inquiry System (BASIS).

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG indicated there was truth in what M.
Hand had said, but added that he +thought a brewub was
envi sioned to have a beverage dispensary |license and would brew
the beer on the prem ses. He nentioned the uniqueness of the
Moose's Tooth situation, which qualified under a provision of
| aw enacted at the sane tinme as the 16,000-gallon [limt] was,
when taverns were legalized in the state; Representative
Rokeberg said he had sponsored a law to outlaw that, and - wth
a few exceptions in the state - all of those |licenses are gone.
Unfortunately, he said, another provision in |aw was a financia
interest section that prohibited a brewer from owning a
restaurant |icense, and subsequently that bill was changed to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 6, 2001



make sure they were brewpubs under a beverage dispensary |icense
with which that business confornmed.

Nunmber 0458

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG continued, saying when that was done
the cap was put on it. Wen the revision was done, there was a
glitch in the "fix" nmade to AS 04.11.135(d), which is trying to
be repeal ed now. He asked whether the sponsor wants to repea
that section because the Mose's Tooth is operating as a brewpub
under the hol der of a beverage dispensary |icense.

MR. HAND replied affirmatively. He thought there might have
been some unintended inconsistencies if the statute were
prohi bi ted under that subsection (d), he added.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d subsection (d) was fornmed al nost as
special-interest legislation to allow [the Mose's Tooth] to be
able to operate. When the bill was drafted, however, soneone
forgot to tell [the drafters] that its brewery was separate from
the prem ses. He expressed concern about repealing that unless
he is 100 percent certain, and said he would like to know the
position of CHARR ( Cabar et Hot el Rest aur ant & Retailer
Association) and ARBA (Anchorage Restaurant and Beverage
Associ ation), rather than the position of those who serve food
al ong with brew ng beer.

MR. HAND replied that he believed subsection (d) to now be noot
because the Mwose's Tooth, for which +the provision was
originated, no longer operates wunder it; it gave up its
grandf at hered right and now operates under a beverage di spensary
|'i cense.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if both [Mose's Tooth] [|ocations
hol d beverage di spensary |icenses.

MR. HAND responded affirmatively and said he believed the
proprietors of the business were online to answer questions.

Number 0629

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he believed the [proprietors] had to
procure a beverage dispensary license to open and operate the
second | ocation. Two years ago, the committee rewote an
Al cohol Beverage Control (ABC) liquor |law, one of the provisions
in HB 67 required that if these brewpubs wanted to open a second

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 6, 2001



| ocation, they had to spend $150,000 to buy a beverage
di spensary |icense.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG objected to that statenent. He said a
brewpub by law has to have a beverage dispensary |Iicense.
[ Alaska] has taverns, he pointed out, and there were only a
couple in operation.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO enphasi zed t hat [the | egi sl ature]
instituted a provision that nmandated that if a brewpub wanted to
open a second location, it had to purchase a beverage dispensary
|icense, at a cost of $150,000, that would allow the serving of
hard al cohol, even though there was no intention of serving it;
this was pushed by conpetitors who were fearful of the growh
and conpetition that was being presented. He said it was his
standpoint two years ago that it was unfair to nake a business
spend noney on an unnecessary license instead of putting that
noney into capital inprovenents. House Bill 152 addresses that
i nvestnent and |l evels the playing field.

Nunber 0771

LI NDA THOVAS, Chief Operations Oficer, Al aska Brew ng Conpany,
cane forth on behalf of Mircy and Jeff Larson, co-founders of
the brewery, who were unable to attend the hearing. She said
the [Alaska Brewing Conpany] doesn't support this bill as
currently drafted and requests postponenent to anal yze changes.
The BGA resolution was passed at noon today, and [the Al aska
Brewi ng Conpany] has not had tinme to analyze it, either.

CHAIR MJURKOWEKI mentioned a portion of the BGA's faxed
statenment, which read [original punctuation provided]:

The Brewers Guild of Al aska (BGA) supports the raising
of the production capacity on Brewpubs from 75, 000
gallons to 150,000 gallons wth the followng
restriction in place. Any Brewpub requesting a
production capacity increase (above 75,000 gal.) would
be prohibited from wholesaling any of their beer
offsite.

M5. THOVAS responded affirmatively. |In response to a comment by
Representative Rokeberg, she said CHARR had endorsed the
original bill

Number 0953

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- April 6, 2001



SEAN  BECK, Presi dent, Speci alty | nports, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He stated that [Specialty Inports] is a wholly
owned Al askan distributor of fine wine and beer, and also is the
distributor for the Mbose's Tooth. [Specialty Inports] supports
HB 152 and believes it is vital for the econonmc interest of al
the brewers in the state.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Beck if he believes in the
three-tiered system under Alaska Statute that regulates the
i ndustry.

MR. BECK said he believes in the taxation issues of the three-
tiered system When asked if the Mose's Tooth is the only
brewpub in Alaska with a stand-al one brewery, he said he wasn't

certain, but knows of other breweries, |ike Bear Creek, that
went out of business because they didn't get into that end of
the business or weren't allowed to. He said he thought others
would as well. He added that a nunber of breweries in the Lower

48 have brewpubs onsite or off-site and are selling their
products in Alaska; it could be an econom c hardship for brewers
here if they aren't allowed to do the sane.

Nunber 1075

GLENN BRADY, President, Silver @ulch Brewi ng Conpany, testified
via teleconference in opposition to the proposed CS [Version J].
He said this would be a sweeping change to the legislation
affecting how [brewers] operate in the state. He agreed with
the statenent made by the Alaska Brew ng Conpany that the bil
hearing needs to be postponed for further consideration
al though he said it is a step in the right direction.

KAREN BERGER, Owner, Honer Brewing Conpany, testified via
tel econference in opposition to [Version J]. It is sweeping
| egi sl ation, she explained, and there has not been tine to
understand the ramfications. She expressed concern about the
$150,000 for a beverage dispensary |icense because in Homer
there aren't any for sale now It would nost |ikely be double
that price, which is prohibitive for snmall breweries in snall
t owns.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked whether M. Berger's objection is
nore about the cost and availability of the beverage dispensary
license than the issues of conpetition and being able to "grow
one's busi ness.

Number 1240

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- April 6, 2001



M5. BERGER replied that although the playing field needs to be
| evel ed, she doesn't agree that this is the best [nethod]. In
speaking to the Washi ngton Al cohol Board this norning, she found
that [brewers in Washington] enjoy a different set of rules that
she agrees with nore. Once again, [all brewers] have to sit
down and cone to an agreenent.

LASSE HOLMES testified via tel econference. The fornmer co-owner
of the Honer Brew ng Conpany, he expressed concern that [the
commttee] is not talking about HB 153 at the sanme tine, which
is an integral [conponent] that Representative Halcro is also
sponsori ng. Wthout having HB 153 involved and, instead, just
tal king about the cap, he said he doesn't believe it is a |level
pl aying field.

Number 1310

LARRY HACKENM LLER, Omnner, Cl ub Manchu, testified Vi a
t el econf er ence. He noted that he is also the chairman of the
board for the state CHARR, which discussed this at its | ast
neeting; with the original bill, [CHARR] decided to at |east

listen to increases up to 150,000 gallons if there is sonme type
of a level where (indisc.) of that had to be a whol esal e and had
to be distributed accordingly. That is quite unclear wth
Ver si on J.

MR. HACKENM LLER said he appreciates the hard work that went
into this with the BGA, however, [brewers] are not full beverage
di spensary license [establishnents], as he is; he suggested that
perhaps there needs to be nore famliarity with some of the
| aws. M. Hackenm || er enphasized that he has been before the
| egi slature every year with brewpub |egislation. In HB 152,
Version J, it says [brewers] want to have no nore than two
| icensed dispensary premses to nmake it a level playing field.
He guaranteed that next session [the brewers] wll be back.
There will never be a level playing field as long as [the
brewers] keep com ng back every year, he concl uded.

MR. HACKENM LLER said the licensed beverage establishnment is not

allowed to give away drinks or sell drinks off-prem ses. Even
in Version J, it says [brewers] are going to have a full
beverage dispensary license, but with the exception that they
are going to be allowed to sell "grow ers"” or off-prem ses beer.

He asked why that is a possibility, since it is not a separation
of the three-tiered system He added that [licensed beverage
establishments] are not allowed to give away drinks due to the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- April 6, 2001



"happy hour |aws", yet [brewers] are allowed to do that [in HB
152]. He asked why that wasn't taken into consideration.

MR. HACKENM LLER expressed his preference for leaving it at
75,000 [gallons]. If [a brewer] can go Qutside for |ess noney,
then that is a marketing tool or a personal business decision
t hat one has to nake.

Nunber 1447

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Hackenm || er whet her CHARR was
i nvolved in this conprom se.

MR. HACKENM LLER said not with Version J. He noted that [CHARR]
has two board nenbers who are also on the BGA He didn't
renmenber exactly what the situation was, but believed after
150,000 gallons it had to go through a wholesaler for
distribution. And if it went above 75,000 gallons, the brewpubs

gave up their right to wholesale the beer. The consensus was
that it would be acceptable for CHARR, however, other things -
for instance, full beverage dispensary |icense violations -

woul d not be.
Number 1503

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Hackenmiller whether the BGA
board nmenbers who are also in CHARR were representi ng CHARR

MR. HACKENM LLER responded that they were not in this |ast
[ di scussion] about Version J. He said he was referring to
several weeks ago when legislative issues, including this bill

were discussed in a [CHARR] board neeting. Last year, CHARR was
not in support of doubling the gallons; however, a conpron se
was accepted that anything over 75,000 would have to be [sold]

whol esal e. M. Hackenmller said he also renenbers Chris
Ander son of Anchorage |ast year asking why there [needed to be]
any gallon limt at all. He said he was amazed that it cane

back at 150,000 gallons again this year, and predicted that
brewpubs are going to be com ng back for nore.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG poi nted out that Version J has no cap
ei ther. He asked for verification that M. Hackenmller's
testinmony is that CHARR was not invol ved today.

MR. HACKENM LLER answered in the affirmative.

Number 1564

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- April 6, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO clarified that M. Brady was involved in
both tel econferences, on Wdnesday and Thursday. When his own
staff conpleted the tel econference and spoke to [M. Brady] on
the phone, he was in agreenment with the decision that had been

reached. Representative Halcro said M. Hackenm |l er has been
in opposition to every brewub bill he has introduced. He
asked: Is it fair for a brewpub to have to spend noney to buy a

beverage dispensary license that it doesn't want or need, in
order to expand its business?

Nunber 1618

MR. HACKENM LLER responded that it must be, because [brewpubs]
wanted the | egislation changed for it, and "we" didn't object to
it. He enphasized that he has to buy the same |icense at the
sanme cost, whether he has a brewpub or not. He added that it
woul d definitely be fair.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if that is true even though [brewub
owners] have no desire to serve hard al cohol, just the beer they
make.

MR. HACKENM LLER said that should have been the case; however,
when [ brewpubs] had restaurants and eating places, that was not
their intent. Rather, they wanted the beer and wine. In having
a full bar, they discovered the noney and effort put into a
licensed premse were not in conpliance with restaurant-and
eating-place licenses, so it was actually cheaper for themto be
a full beverage dispensary. There are all kinds of underlying
points here, he said; again, it wasn't CHARR or the industry as
a whole that wanted them to have full beverage dispensary
| i censes. That was another of the [brewer's] tools to expand,
just as they are trying to do now.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Hackenmiller if it was not CHARR
that insisted the provision be placed in statute that [brewpubs]
must have the beverage dispensary license in order to expand.
He also asked whether [CHARR] hadn't been worried about
conpetition.

Nunber 1670
MR.  HACKENM LLER responded that sonme nenbers probably were
worried about conpetition, but as a whole, CHARR was not

i nvol ved in that. He said [CHARR] was basically following [the
brewer's] lead and letting them have full dispensaries. It was

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- April 6, 2001



a give-and-take situation: They were taking the full beverage
di spensary license's condition and then [CHARR], ... had to give
them the gallonage.” He said this is not a three-tiered system
t hese brewpubs are allowed to do everything that a package store
and a beverage dispensary [establishnent] can't do, which is one
reason it isn't conpetitive. It basically destroys an existing
systemthat applies to everyone el se.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he had wanted to nmeke that point.
The regulatory schenme is set up as a three-tiered system with
retail, package stores, and manufacturing, patterned after the
federal |aw The brewpub provision allowed in the statute was
under the [condition] that [brewpubs] have a beverage di spensary

| i cense. In 1995, he noted, a provision in an onmmibus bill
passed although nobody understood what it said, and suddenly
[ Alaska] had taverns and had brewi ng at eating-places. It took

a nunber of years to get the system back into conformty, which
is why Alaska has that system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said part of it was that the brewub had
a cap because it was considered to be a beverage dispensary
| i censee. The integrity of the three-tiered system and how it
is regulated is nore inportant, he added.

Nunmber 1786

S.J. KLINE, President, Borealis Brewery Conpany, testified via
tel econference. As a guild, he said [Borealis Brewery Conpany]
works hard to address a lot of the concerns nentioned about
Version J. He said Rod Hancock (ph) would be speaking on behal f

of the BGA in support of the bill and how it addresses the
issues that M. Hackenmller and others have. As a nodel for
making beer in Alaska, this bill strengthens the three-tiered
system it renoves discrepancies in Al aska |law that allow sone

peopl e to do everything.

MATT JONES, Co- Omner, Mbose' s Toot h, testified Vi a
tel econference. He said he was appointed by the BGA to speak on
behal f of the guild. There are ten nenbers in the BGA he
not ed, and one was absent today; seven nenbers voted in favor of
HB 152, Version J, and two nenbers voted in opposition.

MR. JONES expressed that there has never been a |evel playing
field in the brewing industry in Al aska. Brewers have al ways
dreaned of opening a brewpub [in Alaska], and at this point they
can't. They are trapped in a position and can't adjust to a
changi ng market. House Bill 152 would allow a brewery to own a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- April 6, 2001



beverage di spensary |license and open a brewpub, while protecting
the value of the beverage dispensary |licenses. The only way to
become a brewpub now is to purchase a beverage dispensary
|icense; that is how [the brewers] have grown. He said M.
Hackenm I ler is worried about eroding the value of the beverage
di spensary |icense. He nentioned purchasing two in the |last few
years, however, and single-handedly driving up the price.

MR. JONES explained that CHARR and ARBA are concerned that if
brewpubs are allowed to bypass the provisional (indisc.) from
the purchase of the beverage dispensary license, to favor the

cheaper beer and wine l|license, the licenses wll |ose value.
[Version J] forces a person who wants to enter the brewpub
market to purchase a beverage dispensary |icense. Breweri es
that have never had a chance would now have an opportunity to
enter the nmarket. O the people who voted "yes" today, M.
Jones said there were at |east three breweries. It is nice to

see brewpubs and breweries agreeing on |egislation, for the npst
part, he added.

Nunber 1971

MR JONES said there was great concern that suddenly the
br ewpubs woul d be all-powerful entities that could play on every
| evel of the three-tiered system - which he didn't believe was
true. Under HB 152 any beer that is produced and not sold, in
the first few beverage dispensary |icenses, nust be sold through
a whol esal er. He said he is satisfied with that tier of the
three-tiered system

MR JONES said [the Moose's Tooth's] distributor, Specialty
I nports, is enthused because they wll continue to have [the
Moose's Tooth's] business. He added that HB 152 also allows
brewpubs to keep growi ng beyond two |ocations with a beverage
di spensary |icense; it provides the opportunity to keep
devel oping locations throughout the state. At this tinme, a
| arge brewery in the Lower 48 can open a brewery, for exanple,
in Washington or Oregon, have an unlimted production cap, and
cone into the Alaska; it can either buy a cheap beer or wne
| i cense or buy a beverage dispensary |license and open a chain of
50 brewpubs. It could produce its own beer and ship it into the
state, and the in-state breweries or brewpubs would not be able
to respond to that, because they would be restricted under
Al askan | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Jones how many enpl oyees he has.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- April 6, 2001



MR, JONES replied 170. When asked if enployees are provided

with healthcare benefits, he replied, "W do, indeed." When
asked how nmuch noney they spent purchasing and renovating the
Denali Theater and opening the second facility, M. Jones
replied that it wll be close to $2 mllion; he expressed

satisfaction with the way it i s working out.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG said he was pleased to have passed
| egi slation two years ago that allowed [the Mose's Tooth] to do
t hat . He asked whether [the Mose's Tooth] had worked out its
problenms with the ABC Board and the | ast |egislation.

MVR. JONES answered in the negative, and asked whether
Represent ati ve Rokeberg was referring to the "grow er” issue.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that he was referring to the
off-prem ses situation, the reason for the equivalent to AS
04.11.135(d) in the last bill.

MR. JONES asked whether that is the section referring to the
col l ocation or the non-collocation of the brewing facility.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG answered affirmatively.

Number 2128

MR. JONES said AS 04.11.135(d) dealt with it. If [Version J]
beconmes | aw, however, AS 04.11.135(d) will be nopot because there
will be no problem wth the brewing facility and a "VDL" being

col | ocat ed.

CHRIS ANDERSON testified via teleconference in support of HB
152. He said "we" have nenbers on the BGA who are also on the
CHARR board, and said he is on the ARBA board. During "our"
nmeetings, there was discussion about comrunicating extensively
with CHARR, ARBA, and the distributors that their [know edge] is
critical to "our" success, so that they didn't feel threatened
by this action.

Nunber 2241

MR. ANDERSON said allowing other breweries in the state to
participate and purchase a beverage dispensary license and do
the sanme work that [the Mose's Tooth] is doing allows [other
breweries] to enter the playing field, yet limts themto only
two locations - which was critical. [ The industry] didn't want
a nmultitude of these throughout the state, he said, so "we" have

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- April 6, 2001



limted "ourselves" by allowing ourselves to continue to grow.
The |eader, he said, is the Al askan Brewi ng Conpany, wth the
Moose's Tooth probably nunmber two, and the d acier Brew House
probably nunber three. All of the other breweries are doing
| ess volune in total gallons, and there is a desire to see them
gr ow.

MR. ANDERSON said this conprom se took a lot of tine, but is a
conprom se with the BGA, trying in earnest to satisfy CHARR and
its menbership, the wholesalers, and retailers. Bet ween the
Brew House (ph) and Orso (ph), he enploys about 250 people and
has invested over $6 nillion in Anchorage; however, he is stil
not affected by this since he is still under the cap.

Number 2305

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Anderson what his current
vol une is.

MR. ANDERSON sai d about 60,000 [gallons], considerably under the
cap; it will be another year before he is over that. Oso is
not a beer restaurant, so he doesn't sell nuch there.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cl arified that M. Anderson is averaging
about 5,000 [gallons] a nonth or 60,000 a year.

Nunber 2345

MR. ANDERSON reiterated that he is nunber three in Al aska behind
the Alaskan Brewing Conpany and the Mose's Tooth. The
definition of a small brewery is 65 000 barrels. The total

brewing of Alaskan beer is less than 4 percent of state
consunption, however, so [local brewers] are just a small part

of the total beer throughout the state. In response to further
questions, he said he has tw prem ses: a brewpub and a
beverage dispensary restaurant. As to whether he could sell his

production directly in Orso, he said he could because he has a
duplicate license, but is not doing so, nor does he intend to,
because it is an Italian restaurant and he sells nore fine
Italian w ne.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Anderson whether he has been
before this commttee on this issue, and whether the committee
took corrective action.

Nunber 2422

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- April 6, 2001



MR. ANDERSON enphasized that this has been an ongoing issue

However, it is the closest to a level playing field, not only
allowing those that are successful to grow, but also allowng
young breweries another opportunity to becone nore successful

Wi thout inpacting the three-tiered system or dimnishing the
beverage dispensary |icense. He said he hopes CHARR and ARBA
woul d agree when they see this.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO remarked that an opportunity wll be
created for sone of the smaller brewers to follow in the
footsteps [of those already established] and grow their
busi nesses. There is an wunderstanding that [the state's]
bi ggest conpetitor is the Qutside beer coming in at a |ower
price, with a greater margin for bar owners.

TAPE 01-50, SIDE B
Number 2452

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Jones what his gallon
production is.

MR. JONES replied that his conmpany [produced] about 68,000 to
70,000 gall ons. When asked if he also sells wholesale, he
replied that between 20 to 25 percent of production goes through
Specialty Inport. When asked what type of a cap is realistic

M. Jones replied that it is difficult to guess, because [the
Moose's Tooth] is opening a new addition, the Bear Tooth
theater, and it is tough to guess what that consunption will be.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that if [the Mdose's Tooth] is
under the cap now, and 25 percent is "wholesaled off," there
woul d be 25 or 30 percent for expansion internally.

Nunber 2384

MR. JONES said he had never heard that proposal from CHARR.  The
proposal he heard was that [brewpubs] could use the first 75,000
gallons in any manner desired, whether for whol esale or in-house
use. I f above that 75,000 gallons, the beer couldn't be sold
whol esal e and could only be sold in-house.

REPRESENTATI VE = ROKEBERG conmmented that he had recei ved
comuni cation from people around the state saying [the Mose's
Tooth] is going to nove out of the state if it can't have a cap,
or that it would be forced to nove out.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 38- April 6, 2001



MR. JONES expl ained that [the Mose's Tooth] had a brewery built
before it becane a brewpub. It built it as a production
facility and probably invested $1 nillion, and it can probably
brew 1.5 mllion gallons. [ The Mbose's Tooth] becane a brewpub
and has the restriction now. There are five enployees at the
brewery, and if [the conpany] can't brew above 75,000 gall ons,
each year in md-sumrer [the conpany] w |l bunp up against the
cap; therefore, his enployees are seasonal and have to be
unenpl oyed. In facing that, nobody with a nortgage to pay is
going to want to work for [the Mdose's Tooth]; in that case
[the company] would have to think about noving the brewery to
the Lower 48.

Number 2270

MR. JONES said on the other hand, [the Mdose's Tooth] could go
to an existing brewery in the Lower 48, have it brew the beer,
and shut down the Moose's Tooth brewi ng conpany. The Moose's
Tooth and the Bear Tooth m ght not nove, but the overall health
of the entire business mght suffer.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG announced that he can't support the bill
as it stands now, and said the testinony in large part wasn't in
favor of it.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked Representative Halcro why he would
like to nove the bill today, since there are groups who are
unconfortabl e supporting it because they haven't had enough tine
toread it.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO replied that his concerns are twofold: it
is getting late [in the session], and the conprom se that was
"hanmered out” in Version J was done over two days. He said he
understands that the representatives from the Al askan Brew ng
Conmpany are on vacation and couldn't participate in the

tel econference, but the bill has been scheduled. The opposition
that the commttee heard is fromthe opponents who show up every
year, including the fellow from Fairbanks who is not in the

busi ness, but is a beverage dispensary hol der who has opposed it
every year.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO enphasized that this is a tine-sensitive
i ssue: as expressed by M. Jones, cone mddle-to-end of summer,
[the Moose's Tooth] is going to bunp up against that cap, which
will affect enployees. This can be worked out as it goes
through the process, Representative said. He added that he
doesn't believe that sone of the people who testified are going

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 39- April 6, 2001



to be in favor of any changes. Sone of the testinony expressing

opposition was from very small brewers, |like [brewers of] 1,000
gallons, if that. [The committee] has to look for the overal
good.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO reiterated that between M. Jones and M.
Anderson, they enploy alnost 400 people and have invested
upwards of $10 million in the economy over the last six to seven
years expandi ng their businesses. He remarked that in reading
through the public testinony on the green [questionnaire] cards,
[he found that] the average person doesn't wunderstand why
government woul d get involved and preenpt econom c grow h, which
is his contention with the bill

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO reiterated that the initiative passed the
BGA board with a 7-2 vote, and the board passed a resolution
supporting this conprom se.

Number 2100

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that the testinony today has
been m xed; even people in the alleged conpronm se don't agree
with this particular version. He said he vehenently objects to
the use of the term "conpromise.” This bill is a huge change in
[ Al aska's] public policy, which basically gets rid of the
concept of a brewpub and allows one to do whatever one wants

If the Moose's Tooth's problem needs to be addressed, the

original bill is closer on the mark, he suggested, and this bill
is highly objectionable on the part of nost people in the |iquor
i ndustry. It is not a conpronmise with the people in the
busi ness, but a conpromse anong a small group of brewers.

Additionally, this issue has been before this conmttee three
times in the last five years. One of the things being repeal ed
was just put into statute two years ago by the very people who
are back here trying to do sonethi ng agai n.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO remarked that he and Representative
Rokeberg have had this discussion in private, and certain groups

are no nore than the "good ol' boy network"” who oppose any
change to protect their standing in the marketplace. He said he
doesn't hear anybody from any beverage dispensary |icense

hol ders nmaking the offer to help others [on business startup and
desi gn, as was expressed by the brewers] because everybody wants
to protect their "piece of the pie." Every day in this
building, [the legislature] addresses legislation that passed
w th bad consequences, he said, and this is no different; this
has stifled econom c devel opnent, and sone of the arbitrary caps

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -40- April 6, 2001



have the possibility of affecting enploynent in this state, and
will certainly affect grow h.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed to the hundreds of questionnaires
recei ved. He said the average public expresses: Way woul d
government |imt econom c developnent? [The state] is throw ng
open the doors and saying, "If you want to invest the noney and
take the risk - as the free nmarket is based on - do it, but you
are still under certain regulations.” This is a good piece of
| egi sl ation, he asserted, opposed by those who don't want any
changes; it is not about conprom se. He expl ained that when he
says "conpronm se" he neans it is a conprom se anpong those who
are willing to sit at the table.

Nunber 1884

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO made a notion to nove the CS for HB 152
version 22-LS0354\, For d, 4/ 6/ 01, out of committee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons and the attached zero fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.
REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked Representative Halcro why he prefers

[ Version J] over the original bill. He asked if his intent is
to not have the upper limt of 150,000 [gallons].

Number 1849

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO responded that the upper limt is fine,
but what the group cane up with was this: i nstead of just
raising the limt, it is a good opportunity to address the

system as a whole and create a |level playing field. [The group]
expressed that by just raising the limt, it wasn't leveling the
playing field as the bill was intended to do.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER sai d he was confused because he thought the
goal was to raise the upper limt so [brewers] could continue to
stay in business here. He asked for wverification of his
understanding that this levels the playing field with the other
beverage [industry conponents] because they have to buy a full
di spensary license |like those for other bars.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO explained that instead of just going in
and raising the limt, it levels the entire playing field.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG added that right now a provision in the
liquor law prohibits a brewer from being a restaurant-eating

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -41- April 6, 2001



place; it has to beconme a brewpub. He added that a brewery
can't become a brewpub; [the product] has to be brewed on the
prem ses. Wth the exception of the Snow Goose in Anchorage and
the Armadillo in Juneau, there are no tavern licenses left. The

bill before the commttee destroys the symretry of the
regul atory schene. It takes any requirenent for the cap away
from a brewub, and allows a brewery to buy a beverage
di spensary license and enter into the business of having a

brewpub, which is restricted by the | aw now.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked for clarification of what the "whole
i ndustry" means. He asked if that would include ARBA, CHARR
and the BGA.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG cl arified that anyone who has a |icense
to sell alcohol in the state is part of the conpetitive picture.
He said it would also include the ABC Board, the wholesalers

and the distributors. This is a highly regulated area of
busi ness, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said he likes to think of this bill as
encour agi ng econom ¢ devel opnment, jobs, and further investnent
in the state by Al askans.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked how the al cohol tax issue, which the
commttee will hear on Mnday, would affect brewpubs.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI explained that it would be the sane as a tax on
other malt beverages.

Nunmber 1619

A roll <call vote was taken. Representatives Halcro, Myer,
Kott, Hayes, and Mirkowski voted in favor of noving the bill
[Version J] from conmttee. Representative Rokeberg voted
against it. [ Representative Crawford was absent for the vote.]

Therefore, CSHB 152(L&C) noved from the House Labor and Conmerce
Standi ng Conmttee by a vote of 5-1.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:30 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -42- April 6, 2001



